ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
Sept enber 23, 2005
8:19 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Lesil MCQiire
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 271

"An Act relating to limtations on overtine for registered
nurses in health care facilities; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 271

SHORT TITLE: LIMT OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

04/ 15/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 15/ 05 (H) L&C, HES, FIN

04/ 30/ 05 (H L&C AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 30/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

04/ 30/ 05 (H M NUTE( L&C)

05/ 02/ 05 (H L&C RPT 4DP 3NR

05/ 02/ 05 (H DP: CRAWFORD, LYNN, GUTTENBERG,
ANDERSQN,

05/ 02/ 05 (H NR: LEDOUX, ROKEBERG, KOTT

05/ 03/ 05 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 03/ 05 (H Heard & Held

05/ 03/ 05 (H M NUTE( HES)

08/ 29/ 05 (H) HES AT 1:30 PM Anch LI O Conf Rm

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -1- Sept enber 23, 2005



08/ 29/ 05 (H Status of Personal Care Attendant regs
09/ 23/ 05 (H HES AT 8: 00 AM Anch LI O Conf Rm

W TNESS REG STER

JANET CLARKE, Assistant Comm ssioner

Central Ofice

Fi nance And Managenent Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 271.

M KE TI BBLES, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 271.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO
Al aska State Legislature
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Suggested topics to consider for HB 271.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal l ed the House Heal th, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 8:19:51 AM
Representatives Seaton, Anderson, Gardner, and WIson were
present at the call to order. Representative Kohring arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

8:21: 33 AM

HB 271-LIM T OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES

8:21:47 AM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 271, "An Act relating to limtations on overtine
for registered nurses in health care facilities; and providing
for an effective date."

CHAIR WLSON said the commttee would discuss a conmttee
substitute for HB 271, [Version 24-LS0838\Y, Bullock, 9/21/05],
but would not "act on it." [ Therefore, some of the follow ng
di scussion relating to changes to the bill are in reference to
Version Y.]

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 2- Sept enber 23, 2005



8:22: 03 AM

JANET CLARKE, Assistant Conmm ssioner, Central Ofice, Finance
And Managenent Services, Departnent of Health and Socia
Services (DHSS), revealed that a contract [for a long-term care
study] has been awarded to the Public Consulting Goup (PCG.
She said she is not "up-to-speed” regarding the personal care

attendant regul ation process. Not wi t hstanding that, she noted
that "the team and group is reviewng the public coments that
were extensive." She said all the information from the public

hearings had to be transcribed and many witten conments are
bei ng revi ened.

8:23:18 AM

CHAIR WLSON surmsed that the information would be ready for
the commttee by the tinme session begins again in January
[ 2006] .

8:24: 08 AM

CHAIR WLSON rem nded the committee that it had discussed all
the pros and cons of the different aspects of the bill, and
recalled that Representative Seaton had a concern about triple
overtinme, which is addressed in the aforenentioned CS [not
adopted as a work draft].

8:24: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that during [the last] hearing,
concerns were expressed by those in the health care industry
that "having the triple overtine paid to nurses could have the
uni ntended consequence of reducing voluntary overtine." He
indicated that it's human nature that soneone would opt to get
paid twice as nmuch through working mandatory overtine, rather
than making |ess through volunteering for overtine. He said
[Version Y] would keep the overtine anobunt paid to nurses
exactly the sane, but a like anpbunt would serve as a fine. The
fine, he explained, would be based on hours as well as a set

anount. He said the aforenmentioned would get back to purpose of
bill: giving consequence to those requiring mandatory overti ne.
8:26: 31 AM

CHAIR W LSON said she thinks that's a good change.

8:26:39 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 3- Sept enber 23, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the | anguage to which he is referring
is in Version Y, on page 3, beginning on line 14, and read as
foll ows:

(c) Upon a finding by the conm ssioner that a
health care facility has violated a provision of this
chapter, the following civil penalties shall apply:

(1) for a first violation of this chapter,
the health care facility shall receive a reprimand and
be assessed a penalty equal to the anpbunt of overtine
conpensation paid to a nurse for each hour worked in
violation of this chapter;

(2) for a second violation of this chapter
within 12 nonths, the health care facility shal
receive a reprimnd and be assessed a penalty equal to
the amount of overtine conpensation paid to a nurse
for each hour worked in violation of this chapter plus
$500;

(3) for a third or subsequent violation of
this chapter wthin 12 nonths, the health care
facility shall be assessed a penalty equal to the
anount of overtime conpensation paid to a nurse for
each hour worked in violation of this chapter plus an
addi ti onal amount of not |ess than $2,500 but not nore
t han $5, 000 for each viol ation.

8:29:18 AM

M KE TIBBLES, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Depart nment of Adm ni stration, directed attention to a
spreadsheet he provided to the commttee. He said that during
the | ast hearing on HB 271, there had been a comment regarding a
pay reduction. He pointed out sonme letter coding on the
spreadsheet. He noted that the third colum read "G3AJ' [genera

government wunit], which includes nursing staff. He i ndicated

that the spreadsheet shows historical benefits from 1984 to the
present. He offered further details.

8:32: 00 AM
REPRESENTATI VE WLSON indicated that she was expecting further
conpari sons across the state of hospitals, pioneers' hones, and

t he Al aska Psychiatric Institute (API).

8:32:11 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 4- Sept enber 23, 2005



MR. TIBBLES said the focus of his testinony today would be
regarding the issues of recruitnment and sal ari es.

8:32: 51 AM

CHAI R WLSON nentioned having heard that there was an issue of a
rai se that was taken away.

8:33: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON asked Chair WIlson to review the major
points of the bill.

8:34: 22 AM

CHAIR WLSON said nurses from APlI, the pioneers' hones, and the
Departnent of Corrections were represented by the state nurses
organi zation to bring to attention the issue of the shortage of
nurses and the fact that nurses have been working nore than one
shift to cover that shortfall. The state was mandating that the
nurses work overtime. Research has proven that when nurses work
overtime for a sustained period of tinme, it's not healthy for
the nurses and it's a safety issue for patients. Many states
have | aws that don't allow nandatory overti ne.

CHAIR WLSON said nurses belong to a union that also includes
other health care workers; therefore, changes nade for the
nurses would affect the others. She said, for exanple, lab
technicians and radiology technicians nay be part of the sane
uni on.

8:38:18 AM
MR. TIBBLES, in response to a question from Representative

Gardner, explained that the G3J refers to the collective
bargaining [unit], while Al aska State Enployees Association

(ASEA) is the union. He confirnmed that the wunit is very
di verse.
8: 38: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, [referring to the aforenentioned spread
sheet], observed that the increase of the Consunmer Price |ndex
(CPI) in "85 of 2 percent with the G3J wage increase of 5
percent "would have been a good year," and then there were not
pay raises until 1990, when "it went up 3.3 [percent] for that
classification." She concluded, "So, during those years where

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 5- Sept enber 23, 2005



the CPI change was really small but there still was an increase,
they basically ... lost ground?”

8:39: 20 AM

MR. TIBBLES answered that's correct. He noted that a contract
submitted to the legislature in 1987 was di sapproved. He noted
that sonetinmes it takes multiple years for negotiations. He

of fered further details.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated, "[The] bottom line is that over
time, conpared to 20 years ago, the nenbers of this bargaining
unit have lost ground as the CPlI increased. It looks pretty
dramatic."

MR.  TIBBLES, regarding recruitnent, said the Departnment of
Adm nistration and the Departnent of Health & Social Services
have <collectively held a nunber of neetings to forward

initiatives to address the issue of recruitnent. The staff
within the Dwvision of Per sonnel in the Departnent of
Adm nistration has been reorganized in order to set up a
pr of essi onal recruitnment posi tion. That position wll

concentrate on those difficult-to-recruit areas, such as nurses.
In response to a question from Chair WIson, he said he doesn't
know whet her any RNs have been hired, but could find out. He
explained that the position of professional recruiter is not
expected to be filled until approximtely Novenmber 1, [2005].
He gave an exanple whereby "looking at recruitnent a little bit
differently really did pay off for the Departnent of
Corrections.”

M5. CLARKE said since the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee's hearing a couple of weeks ago, the
departnment has held a couple sessions with its head nursing
managenent staff and a conprehensive neeting with the University
of Al aska's nursing school, talking about what's being done for
other private providers and what the state and, particularly,
[the Departnent of Health and Social Services] can do to try to
increase recruitnment efforts related to the nursing students
attending the University of Alaska. She said there are a nunber

of managenent tools to propose, including naking attenpts to
i ncrease the nunber of nurses that go through clinical rotations
and state facilities. O her ideas to consider include whether

to develop a stipend program for nurses, tuition reinbursenent,
and a | oan repaynent program

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 6- Sept enber 23, 2005



8:45:45 AM

CHAIR WLSON said, "That sounds absolutely wonderful." She said
t hose types of prograns have been used to attract physicians and
physi ci ans' assistants to work in the Bush.

8:46: 47 AM

MR. TIBBLES said the Division of Personnel is "creating a single
point of contact ... regarding enploynent opportunities for
nurses."” For exanple, a person may "inquire into Departnent of
Corrections about a nursing position." He said, "Right now,
we're not talking to them about other nursing opportunities
within the state." He added, "W're going to try to take a step
back and look at a bigger view of it and see ...: maybe if

sonmeone's not appropriate or even interested, or even hired for
one area of nursing wthin the state, nmaybe we could use themin
anot her area."

MR. TIBBLES said [the Departnent of Admnistration] is holding
conversations with hiring managers regarding how to best market
state positions because sone of the benefits of working for the
State of Al aska are not widely known. There is nore to consider
than just the salary, for exanple, a generous |eave with cash
val ue. He offered other exanples. M. Tibbles said the
department is also working with DHSS on devel opi ng recruitnment
materi al s.

8:48: 52 AM

MR. TIBBLES, in response to a question from Chair WIson, said
there will be nmany opportunities to distribute the information
for exanple, to people attending job fairs.

8:49: 01 AM

MR.  TIBBLES, regarding conpensation, said there is a draft
policy that is currently under review and should be inplenented
by m d-CQctober. The policy wll allow hiring managers to be
preapproved to of fer advance step pl acenent.

8:52:12 AM

MR.  TIBBLES reminded the conmttee that the departnent is
working on a systemthat wll allow it to introduce market data.
He said there are two processes to assigning ranges: collective
bargaining, in which a dollar anmount is negotiated per range,

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -7- Sept enber 23, 2005



and assigning a range to a particular range. He offered an
exanpl e.

8:53:21 AM

MR.  TIBBLES, regarding current enployees, said that DHSS
managenent is reviewing the workflow process to ensure that
staff resources are being used nost efficiently. He offered
exanples. He said DHSS is also collecting information regarding
current working conditions and what nonnonitary changes m ght
create nore desirable working conditions. He nentioned the
Nat i onal Association of State Personnel and Executives (NASPE)
an association that has tal ked about what other states have done
t hat have been attractive. Fl exi ble staffing was one item nore
training was another. He nentioned working with hiring managers
and staff to inprove conditions for nurses.

8:55:12 AM

CHAIR WLSON asked if job sharing has been considered as an
option to offer nurses.

8:57:44 AM

CHAIR WLSON wel coned Representative Kohring via tel econference
and reviewed the change that would be made to the bill in
Version Y. She stated that she is open to any changes that can
be made so that people are confortable with the bill, while
still trying to address not forcing nurses to work overti ne.
9:01: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered three points for consideration:
First, he stated, "I'm wondering whether the nurses actually
have the ability to influence and to set these regulations
through their bargaining units, and whether that's where this
shoul d be." Second, he noted that there is no differentiation
in the bill regarding the nunber of nurses in a facility.
Third, he said he wants to know the reach of the bill. For
exanple, page 4, line 7, refers to a "primary care outpatient
facility", which he said sounds |ike a doctor's office. Page 4,
line 2, refers to an "internediate care facility", which he said
he wants defined. He noted the |anguage refers to "federal",
"state", and "private" facilities, and inquired as to whether
that includes Native health service within the State of Al aska.

9:04: 15 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 8- Sept enber 23, 2005



CHAIR WLSON said she doesn't know if nurses have nuch say
regardi ng collective bargaining. She indicated that there wll
time to research these questions for answers by next session.
Regarding large and small facilities, she said she knows a
distinction was nmade regarding critical access hospitals,
because nobst of them are in areas where there is not access to
any other hospital, but she said the issue has not been brought
forward when there is nore than one hospital in an area.

9: 05: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 4, which refers
to a "primary care outpatient facility" and "long-term care
facility". He requested that the conmittee obtain a definition
of the scope of the bill from "the departnment” and if the
current definition covers doctors' offices.

9: 08: 03 AM

CHAIR WLSON reiterated wanting feedback between now and the
start of session in January 2006. She said that in the Lower
48, sone states require that there be so nmany nurses per
patient; they' ve gone nuch further than this bill. Chair WIson
stated that she doesn't want to go any further than necessary.

9:08: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Alaska State Legislature, indicated
that he would like to know what the situation is regarding
school nurses.

9:09:16 AM
CHAIR WLSON revealed that she is a nationally certified schoo

nurse and knows that sonme schools require a nurse for so many
st udent s.

9:10: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GATTO, in response to a coment from
Representative Anderson, said his wife is currently at work as a
school nurse. He noted, "In the first week of school she is
being paid for one day, but in order to get the work done has to
show up for all five." He questioned whether that would be

consi dered unconpensated overti ne.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 9- Sept enber 23, 2005



9:10:41 AM

CHAIR WLSON said when she was a nurse in North Carolina she was
the only nurse at the school. The | aw was changed just as she
was | eaving to require nore than one nurse at the school.

9:11: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON suggested that various hospitals around
the state could send in suggestions to the commttee.

9:11: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO indicated that a new hospital would be
opening in the [Mtanuska/Susitna] Valley, which will increase
the need for new nurses. He suggested he nmay contact the

director to give hima "head' s up" regarding the bill.
9:12: 47 AM

CHAIR WLSON encouraged witten testinmony for those who don't
want to testify in person.

9:13: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that although he is not on the
commttee, he would "appreciate being kept in the line up.”

CHAIR WLSON commented that she had expected to hear from nore
nurses at today's neeting.

[HB 271 was hel d over.]

9:13:13 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adjourned at 9:13:41 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -10- Sept enber 23, 2005



